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The Frank Boggs House faces east on the west side of Waterloo 
Road, just north of its intersection with Route 108. It is a frame 
(covered with wooden shingles) building constructed in a "T" plan, 
resting on a granite block foundation, with a central, two story high, 
intersecting gable roof (running east-west) projecting, central, liv­
ing room bay which features a one-story high, semi-conical roofed, bay 
window on its south wall. The main building block, a two story high, 
gabled roof (running north-south) frame (covered with shingles) rec­
tangular structure stands behind, holding a large entrance hall and 
kitchen. The main rectangular entrance door is located on its north 
side, covered by a one story high, hipped roof, open porch, running 
along the east and north elevations of the projecting bay. 

One further section, a two story high, shed roofed addition, rests 
along two thirds of the west wall of the main building block, holding 
a central, rectangular, west entrance. 

Fenestration is rectangular and double-hung, holding one-over-one 
lights. Windows are flanked by flat wooden pilasters, surmounted by 
flat wooden lintels and underlined by flat wooden sills. 

The building features pedimented end gables, holding horizontal 
rectangular, one light windows. 

The Frank Boggs House is one of five houses constructed on Kirn's 
rtill by Grover Kirn in 1913, acquired from his father, Jacob Kirn, who 
gave each of his children land on this side of Waterloo Road on which 
to construct their homes. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Frank Boggs House, constructed by Grover Kirn, faces east 
on the west side of Waterloo Road, just north of its intersection 
with Route 108. It is a frame (covered with wood shingles) build­
ing, in a "T" plan, resting on a granite block foundation, with a 
central, two story high, intersecting gable roof (running east­
west) projecting central bay, holding the living room of the house, 
which features a one-story high, semi-conical roofed bay window on 
its south wall, while the main block, a two story high, gabled roof 
(running north-south), one bay deep, frame (covered with shingles) 
rectangular structure, behind the two story high, projecting bay, 
holds the entrance hall and kitchen. Along two thirds of the west 
wall of this main block a two story high, shed roofed addition has 
been added. 

Fenestration is rectangular and double-hung, holding one-over­
one lights. Windows are flanked by flat wooden pilasters, surmounted 
by flat wooden lintels and underlined by flat wooden sills. 

The main rectangular entrance door is located on the north side 
of the main building block's east wall. A one-story high, hipped 
roof, open porch runs along the entire east and north wall of the 
central living room, projecting bay, serving as a covered entrance 
to the main entrance. Another back entrance is located on the south 
side of the west wall of the shed roofed, shingled addition. Three 
wide, poured in place, concrete steps, flanked by an iron railing, 
lead to its rectangular entrance door, covered by a gabled roof por­
tico. 

EAST ELEVATION 

The most dominant element of this elevation is the east wall 
of the two story high, intersecting gable roof, central projecting 
bay, which features a strongly outlined pediment holding a horizontal 
rectangular attic window. This element is repeated on the gable ends 
of north and south walls of the main building block. In addition, 
the east wall of the projecting bay holds two first floor and one 
second floor window, similar to those already described. 

The south side of the east wall of the main building block holds 
no apertures, while the north side holds the rectangular entrance, pre­
viously mentioned, which is covered by the hipped roof, open porch. 

NORTH ELEVATION 

The north elevation of the projecting bay holds a central first 
and second floor window, similar to those already described. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The north elevation of the main building block holds a similar 
first and second floor window1 underlined by a one light, cellar 
window set into the granite block foundation. 

WEST ELEVATION 

The north side of the west elevation holds no apertures. This is 
the wall used by the corner staircase. Along the southern two thirds 
of this wall a two story high, shed roofed addition has been constructed, 
holding a central, rectangular back entrance door, covered by the 
gabled roof portico previously mentioned. It is flanked by a rectan­
gular, double-hung window, similar to those already described, on the 
north and a six light rectangular window on the south. The second 
floor holds two small, three-over-one light , rectangular windows on 
the north and a double window on the south, each component separated 
and flanked by flat pilasters and holding one-over-one lights. 

SOUTH ELEVATION 

The south elevation of the main building block holds two first 
floor windows, similar to those described and a central second floor 
window, surmounted by the heavily outlined pediment and attic window 
previously described. A cellar window, similar to its east wall 
counter-part, lies below. 

It is this wall of the central, projecting, living room bay which 
holds the one story high, semi-conical roofed bay window 1 which in 
turn holds three tall, narrow windows, similar to those already des­
cribed. A single second floor window rests above. 

The building, though modest in scale, has some fine elements 
such as the heavily outlined pediments of the three gable ends of the 
building, holding similar attic windows. The foundation, too, is 
noteworthy, constructed of square granite blocks. The "T" plan, 
too, is helpful to the total design, creating an exceptionally bright 
living room, flooded with light from the southern bay window and an 
interesting east facade. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The Frank Boggs House is significant to Howard County and the 
State of Maryland historically within the context of local history 
and ·archi tecturalTy as an interesting example of the Shingle Style. 

Historically, the building is constructed on land, which was 
once a part of Chew's Resolution Manor. Grover C. Kirn paid his 
father and mother, Jacob and Mary Kirn, $2,000 on September 30, 1911. 
The house, however, was not finished until 1913 for old newspapers 
have been found in the walls of the house with that date. Only a few 
years later, in 1917, the building was acquired by Elizabeth and 
Michael Cooney. Mr. Cooney was an auctioneer and was responsible for 
several additions to the house in 1940, among which was a mantlepiece 
in the middle of the living room's west wall and the shed roofed ad­
dition along the west wall. 

Five houses compose Kirn's Hill, two of which remain owned by 
daughters of Jacob and Mary Kirn. This passage of land from father 
to children on which houses were constructed is a tradition of those 
who settled Maryland. The early settlers of Anne Arundel County 
bought large tracts of land in what is now Howard County, but was then 
the northern area of Anne Arundel County, simply to be sure to pro­
vide for their sons and daughters. Jacob and Mary Kirn are a twentieth 
century example of an eighteenth century tradition and as such, Kirn's 
Hill and the Frank Boggs House are important as a link in the contin­
uity of traditions in the history of Maryland. 

Architecturally, this house has several features, which give it 
worth 1) It's "T" plan is of interest for it reverses the role of the 
service wing to the entrance and living room. Here the base of the 
"T" becomes the front of the house rather than the back and is oc­
cupied by the living room, creating a more flexible floor plan, with 
entrances to both kitchen and hall from it. The hall remains domin­
ant and large in scale in relationship to the living room and kitchen, 
as is traditionally the case, but the living room occupies the base 
of the "T", rather than the kitchen, while the main entrance, stair­
case and hall occupies half of the main building block behind the 
living room. Entrances lead to and from the hall and kitchen through 
the living room for good circulation. The house is typical of the 
shingle style, where staircases are often found in a corner of the 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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?~such as a._ .. 1anavie and the Knoll off Landing Road. /,,. 
7 Experimen':2.tion and innovation is found in the floor plans of 

the t-.11entic th century , attempting to make circulation function crea­
Li v~ly , often placing the staircase in the corner to free space for 
other use. :i The repetition of the heavily pedimented gables and 
their windows is another interesting feature, which supplies contin­
uity and rythm to the building. 

Together with the other four buildings of Kim's Hill, the Frank 
Boggs House forms an important early twentieth century, Victorian, 
building complex . 
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Howard County Land Records 
Interview with Mrs. Frank Boggs on Monday, January 21 , 1980 at 
he r residence. 
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